
Town of Bayfield 
Planning Commission Minutes 

October 13, 2015 
1199 Bayfield Parkway, Bayfield, CO  81122 

 
Planning Commissioners Present:   Joe Mozgai (Chairman), Dr. Rick Smith (Mayor), Isaac 
Fleener, and Matt Nyberg.  
 
Staff Present:  Chris La May (Town Manager), Amy Witte (Administrative Assistant) 
 
Media Present:  none 
 
The meeting was called to order by Chairman Joe Mozgai at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Roll Call:  Four members were present. Commissioner Nelson arrived at 7:03 p.m.  
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Approval of Minutes:  Mayor Smith made a motion to approve the minutes of the July 14, 2015 
and September 8, 2015 meetings as presented. Commissioner Matt Nyberg seconded the motion.  
All were in favor; motion passed unanimously. 
 
Public Input:  None 
 
Action Agenda 
1. Discussion and Possible Action- Vacation Rental Homes and Units 
 
Town Manager La May informed the Commission that he prepared a draft Ordinance for Vacation 
Home and Unit Rentals for initial planning commission review.  It ultimately would require an 
amendment to the Land Use code, including public hearings and ultimately approval by the Board 
of Trustees.  La May also stated that it was easier to make changes to a draft document, which was 
primarily made up of requirements from other communities, as a starting point. Manager La May 
started to detail the draft Ordinance with Section 1. Short term use, vacation, vacation home and 
vacation unit rentals that would be added to the Land Use Code. Town Manager Chris La May 
said that Staff has received a request for a vacation unit rental, where a residential house had been 
remodeled to create a separate entrance to one of the rooms and planned to use it as a vacation unit 
rental. Town Manager Chris La May continued with Section 2 of the draft ordinance that looks at 
the Land Use table and the permitted uses along with uses by review.  It would create vacation 
rentals under the (MS) Mill Street zoning and (TC) Town Center zoning classification and would 
need to come before the Planning Commission for Use by Review approval, where the parking 
and other land use requirements would be reviewed. 
 
Commissioner Nelson spoke up and asked if this draft document has a nontransferable clause 
and if the rentals would need to meet the Towns building codes. Town Manager Chris La May 
stated that he wasn’t sure the nontransferable clause was in the draft Ordinance but that the 
requirement to meet the building code was.  



 
Town Manager Chris La May continued with the staff report.  Section 3. Details the purpose of 
vacation rentals and the application process and requirements, the initial application would be 
processed just as a use by review. The option to have an annual permit renewal is something that 
can be discussed and would allow the Planning Commission to review each property in the event 
there were issues to be dealt with. The annual renewals would be granted or denied by staff and 
subject to an appeal to the planning commission. Chairman Mozgai asked if the staff that would 
handle this would be the Town Manager.  Town Manager La May stated that it would be the 
Land Use Administrator, which is currently the Town Manager.  Mayor Smith commented that it 
would streamline the process. 
 
Town Manager Chris La May continued with section 3 of the proposed ordinance, Vacation 
Rental Application for Permit and commented that he decided to keep the Vacation Home rental 
separate of the Vacation Unit rental with the thought that the vacation unit rental would be used 
more in the commercial zoned property and the vacation home rental would be used in the 
residential zoned properties. 
 
Town Manager Chris La May continued with Section 4. Vacation Home Rental Standards in 
regards to occupancy and parking requirements.  Manager La May stated that the draft ordinance 
has left the zoning classifications to the (TC) Town Center and (MS) Mill Street, he then 
proceeded to locate them on the zoning map. Commissioner Nelson asked why it was restricted 
from the North side of Town.  Town Manager Chris La May felt that the vacation rentals would 
be less detectable in the (MS) Mill Street and (TC) Town Center where multiple uses are 
permitted, but that it could be done in the (SF) Single Family zoning classifications if so desired. 
Chairman Mozgai commented that we could wait to see if there is a demand for the rentals in the 
(SF) Single Family zoning and deal with it at that time. Mayor Smith suggested that we hear the 
staff report then come back and have a discussion for that item.  
 
Town Manager La May continued with Section 4 of the proposed Ordinance regarding the 
standards to signage, floor area, storage, solid waste collection, fire extinguishers, emergency 
ingress/egress, required notices, building code compliance and the requirement that the owner 
reside within the Pine River Valley or have a representative available if problems arise.  
 
Chairman Mozgai asked why we would limit the owner to the Pine River Valley and also what 
constitutes the boundary of the Pine River Valley, Durango has listed La Plata County in their 
Ordinance for the owner to reside. Manager La May stated that it was a starting point and could 
be discussed further and continued with the standards for the Vacation Unit Rentals in the 
proposed Ordinance.  
 
Section 5. Vacation Unit Rental Standards are the same for Vacation Home Rentals being in the 
(TC) Town Center and (MS) Mill Street zoning classifications. 
 
Section 6. Prohibition. A permit would be needed to operate a vacation rental. Such permit will 
not be transferrable and will not be permitted for any residential unit where the property has deed 
restrictions, such as affordable housing and is not permitted for long term, full term or primary 
residential use. 



 
Section 7. Permits and Licenses.  This section would require a vacation rental permit, business 
license, sales tax, and lodger’s tax.  Manager La May concluded the proposed Ordinance with 
Section 8 detailing that any violations would follow Sections 1-5 of the Municipal Code. 
 
Town Manager La May asked for questions or concerns. Mayor Smith wanted to discuss the 
location of the rental units as he originally envisioned this to only be in the (TC) Town Center 
and (MS) Mill Street zoning classifications, but after listening to Commissioner Fleener’s 
comment regarding the option to leave on vacation and rent your house out. Mayor Smith 
suggested that he is favorable to include them in the R10, R20 or R40 zoning classifications in 
addition to (TC) Town Center and (MS) Mill Street, but would like to restrict them from the deed 
restricted lots for affordable housing.  Mayor Smith also would like to take the time and think the 
details through and have them in place instead of rushing to make a decision because it wasn’t 
thought of until it was brought up.  
 
Chairman Mozgai asked for any other comments.  La May asked if there would be any other 
restrictions to the R10, R20 zoning classifications to add to the ordinance.  For instance, Durango 
allows a certain number and certain locations.  Mayor Smith commented that he would not be 
opposed to further restrictions and with the review/permit required, it would have to come before 
the Planning Commission. Town Manager La May stated that with the use by review process it 
give the public a chance to voice opinions, but from a legal stand point there needs to be clear 
criteria in place to be able to deny a permit. 
 
Chairman Mozgai asked if we would want to limit the number of units to one area, so not to 
crowd certain areas.  Mayor Smith suggested 5% of the total number of rooftops in the Town 
limits.  That takes the burden away from having to limit certain areas, but wouldn’t protect 
against them all being in the same area. Chairman Mozgai asked as a group if that was 
acceptable and if there needs to be any limitation on spacing.  Mayor Smith commented that the 
percentage could always be increased, but that he suggested not to limit the spacing in case it 
does take off.  He would also like to see the Town consider a lodgers tax to cover the staff’s 
time.  Manager La May commented that usually the lodgers’ tax goes back into promotion and 
marketing and may have legal requirements to do so. Chairman Mozgai thought the use of a 
lodgers’ tax would be a good idea to promote Bayfield and asked for comments on if we needed 
to separate each R zoning classification. Commissioner Fleener suggested that if it was agreed to 
have a percentage of vacation rentals, why limit to each residential zone.  Mayor Smith agreed 
with Commissioner Fleener to have the vacation rentals in all the R zones straight across, minus 
the deed restricted properties. Chairman Mozgai asked if everyone was in agreement with Mayor 
Smith’s recommendation. Discussion continued regarding a percentage verses individual sewer 
taps and it was decided that staff should look at which was the easiest way to calculate the 
number.  
 
Chairman Mozgai asked how the Pine River Valley would be defined. Commissioner Nelson 
commented that in Boulders Ordinance it stated that the owner would have to live on sight or 
live within 10 miles and a responsible party would have to respond within 90 minutes. Mayor 
Smith suggested we have it state La Plata County. Everyone was in agreement to have the owner 
live within La Plata County.  



 
Commissioner Fleener questioned the 70 square footage in all bedrooms stated in Section 4E.  
He commented that vacation home rentals may not apply the same way.  Manager La May stated 
that the 70 square feet was originally thought to apply to a couple, since the Rental unit would 
have one parking space.  Chairman Mozgai asked if anything needs to be done with the different 
types of rentals in regards to physical space and parking. Commissioner Fleener commented that 
if you have 70 square feet of floor area you would only need one parking space. Chairman 
Mozgai asked if the square footage needs to be increased to 100 in both the Vacation Unit Rental 
and Vacation Home Rental sections, everyone agreed to increase the square footage from 70 to 
100 square feet and leave the number of persons as is. 
 
Chairman Mozgai then asked for any other comments. Mayor Smith commented that he would 
like to add the lodgers’ tax to the proposed Ordinance. Commissioner Nelson commented that 
she didn’t see anything regarding outdoor signage and why that was left out. La May stated that 
it was just a starting point and that it was meant to keep from having signs clutter in 
neighborhoods. Mayor Smith said that it all comes down to having a sign or just a number on the 
house. Chairman Mozgai said it would be best to leave it as is, everyone agreed.  
 
Chairman Mozgai asked Town Manager Chris La May if the changes are all he needs and if the 
revised ordinance would be presented at the next meeting. Town Manager Chris La May stated 
that he would like to present this to the Town attorney, building official and fire marshal for their 
review and then would possibly have it available at the next meeting. 

 
New/Unfinished Business 

Chairman Mozgai asked if there was any new or unfinished business. Town Manager Chris La 
May stated that La Plata County Planning Department had sent a notice of an application for a 
location of extent permit north of Gem Village and east of Gem Lane for an extension of a power 
line which may have no impact on the Town of Bayfield.  
 
Chairman Mozgai asked for any other comments. Commissioner Nyberg asked if anyone knew 
why Sparkle Glass went out of business, no comments were made. Chairman Mozgai 
commented that the B Diner and A & W were also gone. Commissioner Fleener mentioned that 
Tim Sapa will reopen in the A& W location. 
 
Chairman Mozgai also commented on the ballot issue for the mill levy increase for the county 
that different reports had different numbers and how much Bayfield, Ignacio and Durango were 
going to receive which looked good for Bayfield, but he was curious how the number was 
figured. Town Manager Chris La May stated that the numbers did fluctuate but it was in the 40K 
range and it is based on a statutory formula.    
 
Adjournment 
Chairman Mozgai asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting. Mayor Smith made a motion to 
adjourn the meeting, Trustee Nyberg seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 
Meeting was adjourned at 8:30 p.m. 
 
 



Approved: 
 
 
 
___________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Joe Mozgai, Chairman     Amy Witte, Administrative Assistant 
 


